
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 22, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held September 8, 2025 

b. Approve 2025 Georgia Downtown Association Conference – CDP Training 
 

8. Present Donation to Georgia State Patrol Post #37 
9. Planning Commission Post #2 Appointment 

10. Employee Recognition 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

11. ZA-C2500171: PR Land Investments, LLC has petitioned for an amendment to the official zoning map 
applicable to the properties provided below. The applicant proposes the properties be rezoned from 
R-1 and R-3: Restricted Single-Family Residential District and Single-Family Residential District to 
RPC: Residential Planned Community, for the development of 120 single-family semi-detached 
homes.  Tax Map Parcel 093 010 (592 HWY 9 S), Tax Map Parcel 093 011 (93 Southwest Border 
Ave), Tax Map Parcel D02 004, and Tax Map Parcel D04 010 (416 HWY 9 S).  Public Hearing Dates: 
Planning Commission July 14, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. and City Council August 4, 2025, at 5:00 p.m., 
tabled to September 22, 2025.  City Council for a decision on October 20, 2025. 
 

12. ZA-C2500169: Spicer Group Inc. on behalf of Dede Allen, Habitat for Humanity - NCG has petitioned 
for an amendment to the official zoning map applicable to the properties provided below. The applicant 
proposes the properties be rezoned from R-2: Single-Family Residential District to RCT: Residential 
Cottage, for the development of a micro-planned/pocket cottage development. Tax map parcel D01 
047 005 (Stegall Place), tax map parcel D01 047 006 (Stegall Place), tax map parcel D01 047 007 
(Stegall Place), tax map parcel D01 047 008 (Stegall Place), tax map parcel D01 047 009, and tax 
map parcel D01 047 010.  Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 15, 2025 at 
5:30 p.m.; City Council, September 22, 2025 at 5:30 p.m.   

 
 

13. VAR-C2500170 : Spicer Group Inc. on behalf of Dede Allen, Habitat for Humanity - NCG has 
petitioned for a variance from Sec. 2103.9. Specifically, they request a reduction of the minimum 
required undisturbed buffer width for the proposed RCT: Residential Cottage zone from 50 feet to 40 
feet at the rear (north) and side (east and west) property lines, applicable to the properties below.  
Tax map parcel D01 047 005 (Stegall Place), tax map parcel D01 047 006 (Stegall Place), tax map 
parcel D01 047 007 (Stegall Place), tax map parcel D01 047 008 (Stegall Place), tax map parcel D01 
047 009, and tax map parcel D01 047 010.  Public Hearing: City Council on September 22, 2025 at 
5:00 p.m.  

   

  BUSINESS  
 

14. Request to Award RFP #25-RFP-001:IT Managed Services 
 

  WORK SESSION 
 

15. Consideration for Door Installation between Grandaddy Mimms, Dawsonville History Museum and 
Station House  

16. 2026 Meeting Calendar 
 

  
 
 
 



AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 22, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 2 
 

 STAFF REPORTS 
 

17. Jacob Evans, City Manager 
18. Robin Gazaway, Finance Director 

 

   
  MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED: Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel 
 

     RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS, IF NEEDED 
 

     ADJOURNMENT 
  

The next regularly scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, October 20, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 09/22/2025 
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held September 8, 2025 

b. Approve 2025 Georgia Downtown Association Conference – CDP Training 
 

 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 8, 2025 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 8, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor John Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.  
 

2. ROLL CALL: Councilmember William Illg, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Sandy 
Sawyer, Council Member Mark French, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Jacob Evans, City 
Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities Director Jacob Barr, 
Finance Director Robin Gazaway, Director of Downtown Development Amanda Edmondson and 
Zoning Administrative Assistant Stacy Harris.   

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember French.   

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Walden announced Food Truck Friday is on September 12, 2025 
beginning at 5:00 p.m. and the DCSO Public Safety Event will be there as well. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by W. Illg; second 
by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  The following persons spoke during public input: 
 

• Michael Miller, 285 Parkway 575, Woodstock, GA – He spoke regarding an upcoming zoning 
amendment request to correct any public opinion which has labeled their development as 
disingenuous or attempting to “skirt” the zoning ordinance.  He provided the history of the 
zoning amendment request and stated they have returned asking for fewer lots, more property 
and a forty-percent reduction from the original proposal.  He also provided information 
regarding the Planning Department’s recommendation to deny the request which included  an 
interpretation of the term “semi-detached” in the City’s ordinance and stated the City attorney 
reported in a public meeting that “semi-detached” could include multi-family. Mr. Miller 
concluded the Planning Department’s recommendation to deny could have been based on an 
incorrect interpretation of the term “semi-detached”. He then provided an overview of the 
development plans which he said includes significant infrastructure improvements at no cost 
to the City and a donation of ten-acres to the City. He reiterated their intention is not 
disingenuous and gave various examples of semi-detached homes.   
 

       The five-minute allowance for Public Input had expired.  Motion made by W. Illg to add one additional 
minute of time for public input; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

Lastly Mr. Miller explained the ten-acre property donation to the City is not filled with flood 
plains and wetlands as mentioned at a previous public hearing; he provided a FEMA flood 
map overlayed with the development map and no flood plains or wetlands lies within the ten-
acre property. 

 

• Corey Guthrie, 283 Casi Ridge, Dawsonville, GA  - He spoke on agenda item #11 and asked 
the Council to consider allowing community members who work and live within the City, such 
as himself, to form a committee to help with the changes to the code and other considerations 
that the Council may find valuable.   

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b) made by 
S. Sawyer; second by C. Phillips.  Mayor Walden stated he had requested to move the solid waste 
collection service day back to Monday; however, Red Oak Sanitation could not accommodate the 
request at this time. Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 18, 2025 
• Executive Session held August 18, 2025 

b. Approve 2026 Solid Waste Collection Service Agreement with Red Oak Sanitation       

BUSINESS 
 

8. HUNTING ON CITY PROPERTY – TABLED FROM AUGUST 18, 2025:  Motion to suspend all 
hunting on the City’s property for this hunting season and revisit the discussion next year made by 
W. Illg; second by M. French.  Councilmember French said he would like to invite the employees who 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 8, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 2 
 

traditionally hunt on the property into the discussion in order to share concerns and questions from 
both sides of the table and attempt to find a solution.  He also agrees no hunting should be permitted 
on City property this season.  Mayor Walden asked if the motion could be amended to include “No 
Hunting” signs on City property; Councilmember Illg amended his motion to include “No Hunting” 
signs; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor to amend the motion.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor to approve the motion.  

  

9. MILLAGE RATE FOR TAX YEAR 2025: Motion to set the 2025 millage rate to 7.603 and roll it back 
to zero made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

10. T-MOBILE HOMETOWN GRANT APPLICATION:  Motion to approve the T-Mobile Hometown Grant 
Application as presented made by W. Illg; second by S. Sawyer.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

11. PROPOSAL FROM CPL FOR ORDINANCE REVISION SERVICES: Motion to approve the proposal 
from CPL to include review of the Zoning Ordinances (Subpart B and Appendix A) and the existing 
Land Development Regulations (Subpart B) in the amount of $42,000 to be paid out of the FY 2026 
General Fund budget made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.      

 ADJOURNMENT 
 

                 At 5:20 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by S. Sawyer; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried  unanimously in favor.  

  
 

Approved this 22nd day of September, 2025 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE  
 
 
___________________________________  
John Walden, Mayor  
 
 
___________________________________  
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1  
 
 
___________________________________ 
William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sandra Sawyer, Councilmember Post 3  
 
 
___________________________________  
Mark French, Councilmember Post 4  
 
 
 

 
Attest: _________________________  
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE 2025 GEORGIA DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION CONFERENCE – CDP 

TRAINING 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO APPROVE GEORGIA DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION TRAINING FOR WILLIAM ILLG AND 
CALEB PHILLIPS TO RECEIVE PER DIEM OF $100 EACH FOR ATTENDANCE 

 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

    TRAINING TOOK PLACE IN GAINESVILLE ON AUGUST 25, 2025 
 
 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 



Event Details

2025 Georgia Downtown Association Conference - CDP Training: Developing Your Toolbox for
Developing (Funding, Resources, & Tools II)
August 25, 2025 08:30 AM

Location
Downtown Gainesville
Gainesville, GA 
Get Directions

Registrant Information
Mr. Caleb Phillips
415 Hwy 53 East, Ste. 100 Dawsonville, GA 30534
caleb.phillips@dawsonville-ga.gov

Thank you for your registration! Please verify your contact information and reply with any necessary changes.

General Event Information

This year's conference registration fee includes admission to Opening and Closing Keynote Address, Awards
Reception, Conference Educational Sessions/Workshops, Refreshment Breaks, Silent Auction and program
materials. To learn more, www.georgiadowntownassociation.org/conference. 

Online Registration Deadline: August 8, 2025. All registrations and payments received after this date will be
processed as an on-site, and a $50 processing fee will be applied. Registration fees must be paid in full prior
to participation in the conference. Payments may be made by credit card. You must create or sign into your
account to register for the conference. Please use the sign-in/registration form on the right-hand side of the
screen to get started. Hotel Rooms: GDA has reserved hotel blocks at 4 Gainesville hotels with discounted
conference rates.

Please use this link for information on the hotels and booking links and call-in details. Cancellation
Policy: Cancellations received before August 1, will receive a refund less a $50 processing fee. Written notice
of cancellation is required. Refunds will be processed approximately 30 days after the event. Cancellations
received after August 1 will not be refunded.

GMA Privacy Legal Disclaimer
https://www.gacities.com/Legal-Disclaimer

Dietary Legal Disclaimer

GMA strives to accommodate all guest needs at GMA-hosted events, but we cannot guarantee
that food available at GMA-hosted events is completely free from allergens. If you have food allergies, please
take necessary precautions, as attending means you accept responsibility for any potential reactions. While we
do our best, we are unable to assume liability for food-related concerns. GMA has no control over food
provided at events it does not host, even when such events take place in conjunction with or in the same
venue as GMA-hosted events. You should reach out directly to the host of such events to discuss any food
restrictions.

Registration Item Specific Information

Location Brenau University, Meeting Room B, 301 Main St. SW   

Breakfast on your own; lunch will be included

 

Thank you again for your participation!

https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.google.com?p=eyJzIjoiNTlOYnBnOEotRGowVlQ1SGJGdjRYYTdUUXdNIiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nb29nbGUuY29tXFxcL21hcHNcXFwvc2VhcmNoXFxcLz9hcGk9MSZxdWVyeT1Eb3dudG93bitHYWluZXN2aWxsZStHYWluZXN2aWxsZSwrR0ErXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiMWZhMDRkYjlkMDFiNDY5N2FkYzYwZTY2Y2E1YjEwNmFcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJkNDA1NjIxZDcyMmY5ZWI2NDI1ZTJjNzM2YzdmM2Y4OWFkMTFhZGMzXCJdLFwibXNnX3RzXCI6MTc1NjA3MzAzN30ifQ
mailto:caleb.phillips@dawsonville-ga.gov
https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.georgiadowntownassociation.org?p=eyJzIjoidVp4Qk9kVnJ5MlZrNElwYlVtSWVYbjdJZmxNIiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nZW9yZ2lhZG93bnRvd25hc3NvY2lhdGlvbi5vcmdcXFwvZ2RhLWNvbmZlcmVuY2VcIixcImlkXCI6XCIxZmEwNGRiOWQwMWI0Njk3YWRjNjBlNjZjYTViMTA2YVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjZlMTBmMjVlMDdlN2RmY2M2MWVkNGI3ZDQ1YjFjNDA5MjQ0MmNkNTRcIl0sXCJtc2dfdHNcIjoxNzU2MDczMDM3fSJ9
https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.georgiadowntownassociation.org?p=eyJzIjoidVp4Qk9kVnJ5MlZrNElwYlVtSWVYbjdJZmxNIiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nZW9yZ2lhZG93bnRvd25hc3NvY2lhdGlvbi5vcmdcXFwvZ2RhLWNvbmZlcmVuY2VcIixcImlkXCI6XCIxZmEwNGRiOWQwMWI0Njk3YWRjNjBlNjZjYTViMTA2YVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjZlMTBmMjVlMDdlN2RmY2M2MWVkNGI3ZDQ1YjFjNDA5MjQ0MmNkNTRcIl0sXCJtc2dfdHNcIjoxNzU2MDczMDM3fSJ9
https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.gacities.com?p=eyJzIjoiRFFWZFZLanZ4VlRsalNDRUFtSVJXVldOYkNNIiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nYWNpdGllcy5jb21cXFwvZ2VuZXJhbFxcXC9wcml2YWN5LXBvbGljeVwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjFmYTA0ZGI5ZDAxYjQ2OTdhZGM2MGU2NmNhNWIxMDZhXCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZTQyYzU4OGQ5NDM3NjhkNjAzZDcwYzllYjRjZWI2ZTA2OWRiMmZjNVwiXSxcIm1zZ190c1wiOjE3NTYwNzMwMzd9In0


Event Details

2025 Georgia Downtown Association Conference - CDP Training: Developing Your Toolbox for
Developing (Funding, Resources, & Tools II)
August 25, 2025 08:30 AM

Location
Downtown Gainesville
Gainesville, GA 
Get Directions

Registrant Information
Mr. William Illg
415 Hwy 53 East, Ste. 100 Dawsonville, GA 30534 UNITED STATES
william.illg@dawsonville-ga.gov

Thank you for your registration! Please verify your contact information and reply with any necessary changes.

General Event Information

This year's conference registration fee includes admission to Opening and Closing Keynote Address, Awards
Reception, Conference Educational Sessions/Workshops, Refreshment Breaks, Silent Auction and program
materials. To learn more, www.georgiadowntownassociation.org/conference. 

Online Registration Deadline: August 8, 2025. All registrations and payments received after this date will be
processed as an on-site, and a $50 processing fee will be applied. Registration fees must be paid in full prior
to participation in the conference. Payments may be made by credit card. You must create or sign into your
account to register for the conference. Please use the sign-in/registration form on the right-hand side of the
screen to get started. Hotel Rooms: GDA has reserved hotel blocks at 4 Gainesville hotels with discounted
conference rates.

Please use this link for information on the hotels and booking links and call-in details. Cancellation
Policy: Cancellations received before August 1, will receive a refund less a $50 processing fee. Written notice
of cancellation is required. Refunds will be processed approximately 30 days after the event. Cancellations
received after August 1 will not be refunded.

GMA Privacy Legal Disclaimer
https://www.gacities.com/Legal-Disclaimer

Dietary Legal Disclaimer

GMA strives to accommodate all guest needs at GMA-hosted events, but we cannot guarantee
that food available at GMA-hosted events is completely free from allergens. If you have food allergies, please
take necessary precautions, as attending means you accept responsibility for any potential reactions. While we
do our best, we are unable to assume liability for food-related concerns. GMA has no control over food
provided at events it does not host, even when such events take place in conjunction with or in the same
venue as GMA-hosted events. You should reach out directly to the host of such events to discuss any food
restrictions.

Registration Item Specific Information

Location Brenau University, Meeting Room B, 301 Main St. SW   

Breakfast on your own; lunch will be included

 

Thank you again for your participation!

https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.google.com?p=eyJzIjoiN1RDSFQ1ZldrNFNOWHZqcVIwYVd2Qldpc3VRIiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nb29nbGUuY29tXFxcL21hcHNcXFwvc2VhcmNoXFxcLz9hcGk9MSZxdWVyeT1Eb3dudG93bitHYWluZXN2aWxsZStHYWluZXN2aWxsZSwrR0ErXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiZTQ2Yzk3OWU4MjEzNDdlYmFhN2IwZTBlMjY4NTA1ZmJcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJkNDA1NjIxZDcyMmY5ZWI2NDI1ZTJjNzM2YzdmM2Y4OWFkMTFhZGMzXCJdLFwibXNnX3RzXCI6MTc1NjA3Mjg1OX0ifQ
mailto:william.illg@dawsonville-ga.gov
https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.georgiadowntownassociation.org?p=eyJzIjoiVi1XNVBRZmh1cXRXMHJESFpsYVdyckJJb2RzIiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nZW9yZ2lhZG93bnRvd25hc3NvY2lhdGlvbi5vcmdcXFwvZ2RhLWNvbmZlcmVuY2VcIixcImlkXCI6XCJlNDZjOTc5ZTgyMTM0N2ViYWE3YjBlMGUyNjg1MDVmYlwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjZlMTBmMjVlMDdlN2RmY2M2MWVkNGI3ZDQ1YjFjNDA5MjQ0MmNkNTRcIl0sXCJtc2dfdHNcIjoxNzU2MDcyODU5fSJ9
https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.georgiadowntownassociation.org?p=eyJzIjoiVi1XNVBRZmh1cXRXMHJESFpsYVdyckJJb2RzIiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nZW9yZ2lhZG93bnRvd25hc3NvY2lhdGlvbi5vcmdcXFwvZ2RhLWNvbmZlcmVuY2VcIixcImlkXCI6XCJlNDZjOTc5ZTgyMTM0N2ViYWE3YjBlMGUyNjg1MDVmYlwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjZlMTBmMjVlMDdlN2RmY2M2MWVkNGI3ZDQ1YjFjNDA5MjQ0MmNkNTRcIl0sXCJtc2dfdHNcIjoxNzU2MDcyODU5fSJ9
https://mandrillapp.com/track/click/31027758/www.gacities.com?p=eyJzIjoiZmJKdnJYa0N0ZDNxaVJKaE1WaHFOU0RQcnU4IiwidiI6MiwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMTAyNzc1OCxcInZcIjoyLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5nYWNpdGllcy5jb21cXFwvZ2VuZXJhbFxcXC9wcml2YWN5LXBvbGljeVwiLFwiaWRcIjpcImU0NmM5NzllODIxMzQ3ZWJhYTdiMGUwZTI2ODUwNWZiXCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZTQyYzU4OGQ5NDM3NjhkNjAzZDcwYzllYjRjZWI2ZTA2OWRiMmZjNVwiXSxcIm1zZ190c1wiOjE3NTYwNzI4NTl9In0


                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT: __PRESENT DONATION TO GEORGIA STATE PATROL POST #37_ 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025 
  
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO PRESENT DONATION TO THE GEORGIA STATE PATROL REPRESENATITVE FROM POST #37 
 
 SGT. JOSH HEDDEN WILL BE IN ATTENDANCE TO RECEIVE THE DONATION 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
CITY COUNCIL APPROVED A RESOLUTION ON 07/21/2025 TO PROVIDE THE DONATION OF TWELVE 
TINT METERS TOTALLING $2,078.00 
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Jacob Evans, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #____8_______ 
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PLANNING COMMISSION POST #2 APPOINTMENT 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    ____ Other   

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve:    ____  Enterprise Fund    ____  General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPOINT JACK EATON TO PLANNING COMMISSION POST #2 TO FULFILL THE 
UNEXPIRED TERM OF JOSH NICHOLS THROUGH 12/31/2027 

 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

MR. EATON HAS BEEN VETTED AS PER THE CITY’S PROCESS AND WILL BE IN ATTENDANCE 
AT THE MEETING FOR HIS APPOINTMENT 
 
 

     OPTIONS:   
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:   
 
APPROVE AS REQUESTED 
 
 

 
 
REQUESTED BY: Jacob Evans, City Manager_ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9     
 

 

X 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
 

    
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Jacob Evans, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT: ZA-C2500171 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:    PUBLIC HEARING  
 

ZA-C2500171: PR Land Investments, LLC has petitioned for an amendment to the official zoning 
map applicable to the properties provided below. The applicant proposes the properties be rezoned 
from R-1 and R-3: Restricted Single-Family Residential District and Single-Family Residential District 
to RPC: Residential Planned Community, for the development of 120 single-family semi-detached 
homes. Tax Map Parcel 093 010 (592 HWY 9 S), Tax Map Parcel 093 011 (93 Southwest Border 
Ave), Tax Map Parcel D02 004, and Tax Map Parcel D04 010 (416 HWY 9 S). Public Hearings Dates: 
Planning Commission July 14, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. and Mayor and City Council August 4, 2025, at 
5:00 p.m.  P lanning Commission Tabled until August 11, 2025.  City Council postponed 
the Public Hearing until September 22, 2025 
 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• +/- 34.71 acres 
• 120 dwelling units / 3.46 density per acre  
• Gateway Corridors, Residential 
• Vacant land 
• Planning Commission Denied the Rezoning on August 11, 2025 
• City Council Postponed the Public Hearing until Monday, September 22, 2025 

 
 

     OPTIONS:  
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: CPL, Planning & Zoning Department 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 











































































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT: ZA-C2500169 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:    TABLE PUBLIC HEARING  
 

ZA-C2500169: Spicer Group Inc. on behalf of Dede Allen, Habitat for Humanity - NCG has 
petitioned for an amendment to the official zoning map applicable to the properties provided below. 
The applicant proposes the properties be rezoned from R-2: Single-Family Residential District to RCT: 
Residential Cottage, for the development of a micro-planned/pocket cottage development. Tax Map 
Parcels: D01 047 005 (Stegall Place), D01 047 006 (Stegall Place), D01 047 007 (Stegall Place), D01 
047 008 (Stegall Place), D01 047 009, and D01 047 010.  Planning Commission Public Hearing Date: 
September 15, 2025, at 5:30 PM.  Mayor and City Council Public Hearing Date: September 22, 2025, 
at 5:00 PM. P lanning Commission Tabled the decision until October 13, 2025.   

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• +/- 3.13 acres 
• 12 dwelling units / 3.84 density per acre  
• Vacant land 
• Planning Commission Tabled the decision until October 13, 2025 

 
 

     OPTIONS:  
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: CPL, Planning & Zoning Department 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 















































































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT: VAR-C2500170 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  TABLE THE PUBLIC HEARING UNTIL THE REZONING 
REQUEST ZA-C2500169 IS HEARD  

 

VAR-C2500170: Spicer Group Inc. on behalf of Dede Allen, Habitat for Humanity - NCG has 
petitioned for aa variance from Sec. 2103 (9).  Specifically, they request a reduction of the minimum 
required undisturbed buffer width for the proposed RCT: Residential Cottage zone from 50 feet to 40 
feet at the rear (North) and side (East and West property lines, applicable to the properties below.  

Tax Map Parcels: D01 047 005 (Stegall Place), D01 047 006 (Stegall Place), D01 047 007 (Stegall 
Place), D01 047 008 (Stegall Place), D01 047 009, and D01 047 010. 

Mayor and City Council Public Hearing Date: September 22, 2025, at 5:00 PM  

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• +/- 3.13 acres 
• 12 dwelling units / 3.84 density per acre  
• Vacant land 
• Planning Commission Tabled the rezoning request until October 13, 2025 

 
 

     OPTIONS:  
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: CPL, Planning & Zoning Department 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



*City Council hearing and meeting dates are subject to change          Mayor and City Council Meeting | 22 September 2025 | pg. 1 
 

 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
 

Planning Staff Report 
 

Variance Request 
 

 
 
APPLICANT  ................................................................Dede Allen, Habitat for Humanity - NCG 
 
CASE NUMBER ...........................................................VAR-C2500170 
 
REQUEST ....................................................................Vary from Sec. 2103.9 to reduce the minimum required 

undisturbed buffer width for the proposed RCT: 
Residential Cottage zone from 50 feet to 40 feet at the 
rear (north) and side (east and west) property lines. 

 

CURRENT ZONING DESIGNATION .............................R-2: Single-Family Residential District 
 
SITE AREA ...................................................................+/- 3.13 acres 
 
LOCATION ..................................................................Stegall Place 
 
TAX MAP PARCELS .....................................................D01 047 005, D01 047 006, D01 047 007, D01 047 008, D01 

047 009 & D01 047 010 
 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DATE* ...................September 22, 2025 
 

CITY COUNCIL DECISION MEETING DATE* ...............October 20, 2025 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The applicant has requested to vary from the micro-planned/pocket development buffer regulations (Sec. 
2103.9). Specifically, they propose the reduction of the minimum required undisturbed buffer width for the 
proposed RCT: Residential Cottage zone from 50 feet to 40 feet along the rear (north) and side (east and west) 
property lines. Separate from this request, the applicant has initiated a zoning map amendment request (case 
ZA-C2500169) to rezone the subject parcels to RCT: Residential Cottage. If the requested variance is approved, 
the undisturbed exterior buffer with all abutting properties would be reduced by twenty percent (20%) to 40 
feet. 
 
PROPOSAL  
 

The subject 3.13 +/- assemblage, which fronts Stegall Place to the south, is in a primarily residential area, and 
property tax records show no history of development. The site is heavily wooded, and many existing trees would 
be removed to enable the proposed cottage development. 
 
Pursuant to Sec. 2103.9, an undisturbed buffer no less than 50 feet in width shall be maintained where an RCT 
zone abuts a different zoning district. For the subject site, this applies to the western, northern, and eastern 
property lines. The submitted variance application states that a 50-foot buffer “is too large for a [3-acre] parcel,” 



  

Mayor and City Council Meeting | 22 September 2025 | pg. 2 
 

and when “factoring in stormwater accommodations and grading, a proposed 40’ buffer would still provide a 
visual barrier.” Further, they report that “a 50’ exterior buffer would restrict more than half of the property.” If 
the variance were to be denied, “drainage from upstream and downstream properties can’t be property 
accommodated without walls, which would increase the risk for injury” according to the submittal. The 
conceptualized site design, which provides for 40-foot exterior buffers rather than 50-foot-wide iterations, has 
necessitated this variance request. 
 

SURROUNDING PROPERTIES  

0BDirection from the Site 1BExisting Zoning 2BExisting Land Use 

North CBD, HB, R-2 Single-family residential, agriculture, government office 

South R-2 Single-family residential, vacant land  

East R-2 Single-family residential, multi-family residential 

West CBD, R-2 Single-family residential, agriculture 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
Pursuant to the 2023 Dawsonville Comprehensive Plan, the subject assemblage is in the Residential Character 
Area.  

The Residential Character Area “represents the outlying residential portions of the city to the northwest, 
northeast and south. There are no immediate plans to alter their general form or land use, and long term plans 
suggest these areas will remain residential. Present levels of agricultural activity will continue as development 
pressures will allow, but neither the city nor the county will pursue capital improvements in this region to 
facilitate new development.  

This area will be fostered as a haven for larger residential uses and rural/conservation subdivisions to facilitate 
a buffer between the higher densities of Dawsonville and the rest of Dawson County. Most development should 
entail large lots, with an average approaching or, preferably, surpassing five acres per unit [0.2 du/acre]. 
Nonresidential activity should be kept to a minimum and compliment the rural character of the area, such as 
churches, neighborhood scale markets and services with limited parking and traffic generation.” 

Permissible land use types in Residential Character Area are Residential, Agricultural, and Conservation. 

ANALYSIS 

Sec. 907 – Variances, conditional uses and map amendments. 

Subsection I. Purpose. The purpose of a variance is to provide relief when a strict application of the district 
requirements would impose unusual practical difficulties or unnecessary physical hardships on the applicant. 
Practical difficulties and unnecessary hardships may result from the size, shape, or dimensions of a site or the 
location of existing structures thereon; from geographic, topographic, or other conditions on the site or in the 
immediate vicinity. No variance shall be granted to allow the use of property for a purpose not authorized within 
the district in which the proposed use would be located. A variance should be granted only after evidence is 
presented and accepted that enforcement of all of the required standards on the property in question would 
render the property useless. This article establishes conditions; criteria for granting variances; public hearings 



  

Mayor and City Council Meeting | 22 September 2025 | pg. 3 
 

on proposed variances; variances to road requirements; variance procedures; compliance with conditions of 
approval; vested interest in approved variances; investigations and reports; revocation; limitations on re-
applications; and use variance. A variance may be granted, upon specific findings that all of the following 
conditions exist. The absence of any one of the conditions shall be grounds for denial of the application 
for variance. 

 

(Language in bold is from the City of Dawsonville Zoning Ordinance. Bulleted information that is not bolded are 
factors known to staff that may apply to the Ordinance criteria.) 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of property in 
question because of its size, shape or topography that are not applicable to other land or structures in 
the same district; and, 

• The subject site is similar in size and topography to neighboring parcels; however, it’s relatively 
deep and rectangular in shape. 

• Site geometry results in a greater portion being devoted to undisturbed buffers compared to sites 
with differing shapes and dimensions. 

i. Pursuant to the survey provided, the assemblage perimeter totals 1,555 feet. Of this, 
1,296 feet (83.3%) of the perimeter directly abuts adjacent properties, and 259 feet 
(16.7%) abuts Stegall Place. Accordingly, 83.3% of the lot perimeter is subject to exterior 
buffer requirements. 

ii. By comparison, a square lot would have 75% of its perimeter subject to buffering, and a 
rectangular-shaped site wider than it is deep would have even less. In both cases, the 
share of the site devoted to buffering would be lower than the applicant’s circumstance. 
 

2. A literal interpretation of the provisions of these zoning regulations would create an unnecessary 
hardship and would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other property owners 
within the district in which the property is located; and, 

• Staff do not anticipate that a literal interpretation of Residential Cottage buffer standards, 
commanding a 50-foot undisturbed buffer along all adjacent property lines, would create 
unnecessary hardship for the applicant. 

i. Absent an approved variance, the applicant could construct a micro-planned/pocket 
development with fewer cottages and/or a different arrangement, as to accommodate 
50 feet of buffering along all property lines. 

ii. However, due to the geometry of the lot, the 50-foot buffer requirement might be more 
impactful and restrictive than for similar sites in the City.  

• The associated zoning map amendment proposal (ZA-C2500169) to rezone the site to RCT: 
Residential Cottage, if approved, would create the first RCT zone in Dawsonville. 
 

3. Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the property of the applicant any special 
privileges that are denied to other properties of the district in which the applicant's property is 
located; and, 

• If City Council finds that exceptional conditions exist upon the subject lot, granting the requested 
variance would not confer any special privileges.  
 



  

Mayor and City Council Meeting | 22 September 2025 | pg. 4 
 

4. Relief, if granted, will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of these regulations and will not be 
injurious to the neighborhood or general welfare in such a manner as will interfere with or discourage 
the appropriate development and use of adjacent land and buildings or unreasonably affect their 
value; and, 

• If the request is approved, the map amendment request to rezone the site to RCT: Residential 
Cottage, must also be approved for the variance to be realized. 
 

5. The special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant; and, 
• The circumstances which substantiate this variance request are the direct result of the applicant. 

i. The applicant has initiated a request to rezone and develop the presently vacant 
assemblage, which has prompted this variance request. 
 

6. The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the legal use of the land, 
building, or structure; and, 

• Staff defer to the associated rezoning case (ZA-C2500169) for this criterion. 
 

7. The variance is a request to permit a use of land, building or structures which is permitted by right in 
the district involved. 

• If the variance request is approved, it would enable a cottage development, which is permitted 
by-right in the RCT: Residential Cottage district. 
 

Subsection II.C Basis for approval. No variance may be granted under this paragraph for an application for 
a variance that has been heard by the planning commission within one year or if the application is for the 
expansion of a non-conforming use or structure. The following criteria shall be considered by the planning 
commission (or City Council) before granting a variance under this paragraph: 
 

(Language in bold is from the City of Dawsonville Zoning Ordinance. Bulleted information that is not bolded are 
factors known to staff that may apply to the Ordinance criteria.) 

1. The variance neither interferes with the rights of others as provided in this chapter nor is injurious to 
the public health, safety, general welfare; 

• Staff do not anticipate that granting the subject variance would be detrimental to the rights, 
health, or welfare of others.  
 

2. A strict interpretation and enforcement of the standards or requirement would result in practical 
difficulty or unnecessary hardship; 

• A strict interpretation of Residential Cottage buffer standards, which require a 50-foot 
undisturbed buffer along all adjacent property lines, is unlikely to create unnecessary hardship 
for the applicant. 

i. However, due to lot geometry, the 50-foot buffer requirement might be more impactful 
and restrictive than for similar sites nearby. 

 

3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances applicable to the subject property exist that do not 
generally apply to other properties in the same district; 

• There are no exceptional or extraordinary circumstances applicable to the subject site in the 
context of nearby properties. 



  

Mayor and City Council Meeting | 22 September 2025 | pg. 5 
 

• The subject variance request has been necessitated by a separate application to rezone the 
assemblage to RCT: Residential Cottage. If approved, this site would be the first RCT zone in 
Dawsonville. 
 

4. The variance provides for reasonable use under the specified circumstances of each application; 
• If the variance request is approved, it would enable a cottage development, which is permitted 

by-right in the RCT: Residential Cottage district. 
 

5. The variance achieves the general intent of this ordinance; 
• Staff cannot determine whether the subject variance request may aid or detract from the intent 

of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

6. The variance is the minimum possible variance under the specific circumstances; and 
• Pursuant to the submitted concept plan, the requested buffer reduction to 40 feet is likely the 

minimum possible along the side (east and west) property lines. 
• Reducing the minimum exterior buffer to 40 feet along the northern property line may exceed 

the minimum possible variance based on the depicted stormwater management facility. 
i. The facility is shown to maintain approximately 52 feet from the rear property line.  

 

7. The variance does not exceed the scope of the authority set forth in subsection (A) hereof. 
• The requested variance represents a 20% decrease in the minimum required exterior buffer 

width. Therefore, the request does not exceed the scope of authority as established in Sec. 
907.II.A. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval with conditions of the variance request to reduce the minimum required 
undisturbed buffer width for the proposed RCT: Residential Cottage zone from 50 feet to 40 feet at the rear 
(north) and side (east and west) property lines. Staff recommends the following conditions be adopted as part 
of the approval: 

1. Approval of this variance request is contingent upon the approval of zoning map amendment request 
ZA-C2500169, to rezone the subject property to RCT: Residential Cottage. 

2. The undisturbed buffer at the rear (northern) property line shall only be reduced by five (5) feet, to 45 
feet. 













                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    REQUEST TO AWARD RFP #25-RFP-001: IT MANAGED SERVICES 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST TO AWARD RFP #25-RFP-001 FOR IT MANAGED SERVICES TO ANDERSON 
COMPUTER & NETWORK SERVICES, INC. (ACNS) AND APPROVE THE AGREEMENT 

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• CITY ISSUED THE RFP EARLIER THIS YEAR AND RECEIVED THIRTY-EIGHT RESPONSES; A 
MAJORITY OF RESPONSES WERE REJECTED DUE TO NOT MEETING THE SPECIFICATIONS AS 
REQUIRED IN THE RFP.  

• THE REMAINDER OF THE RFPS WERE EVALUATED BY A COMMITTEE ACCORDING TO SPECIFIC 
CRITERIA.  THREE FIRMS SCORED AN AVERAGE OF 75+ POINTS AND THE COMMITTEE HELD 
INPERSON INTERVIEWS WITH EACH FIRM. 

• COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS ACNS AS THE CANDIDATE TO AWARD THE RFP BASED ON HIGH 
SCORING FOR THEIR OVERALL CAPABILITIES AND GOVERNMENT EXPERIENCE, PROJECT 
COST, AND THEIR LOCATION.  ADDITIONALLY, THE COMMITTEE DETERMINED THROUGH THE 
INTERVIEW PROCESS THAT ACNS BEST REPRESENTED THE CITYS NEEDS AS IT’S MANAGED 
IT VENDOR.   

• CITY ATTORNEY REVIEWED AND APPROVED THE CONTRACT 
    

    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDS AWARDING RFP #25-RFP-001 TO ANDERSON COMPUTER & NETWORK 
SERVICES, INC. AND APPROVING THE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:   Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 



Confidential                 
 

 

 
24 Alicia Lane, Suite 5, Dahlonega, GA 30533 / Phone: (678) 222-1750 / www.andersonnetworks.com 

 

1  

COMPUTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this _____ day of ____________, _____ by and between Anderson 
Computer & Network Services, Inc. . (“Consultants”) and City of Dawsonville (“Customer”). 
 
Company:  Anderson Computer & Network Services, Inc. 
 
Customer Company: City of Dawsonville  
  Offices Included:  All City of Dawsonville Offices 
 

Agreements 
 
In consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in this Agreement, Customer and Consultants 
hereby agree as follows: 
 
1.  Services. The Consultants shall, during the Term (as defined below) provide to the Customer 
the computer consulting services described below (the "Services" or "Work Product"), at such 
times as the Customer may reasonably request. 
 
Services include, but are not limited to evaluating and recommending IT hardware and software, 
purchase and installation of hardware and software for Customer’s IT functions and maintenance 
and support for software and hardware as follows: 
A. Workstations 
1.  Maintain Service Pack Updates and Security Updates on all Workstations. 
2.  Develop and deploy security software solution to include anti-virus, network and firewall 
security as well as ransomware protection.  
3.  Develop standardization of desktop and network related hardware. 
4.  Develop computer life cycling for regular replacement of all workstations, servers and network 
infrastructure. 
5.  Maintain Service Pack Updates and Security Updates on all Servers. 
6.  Develop backup strategies for both onsite and offsite backups.  This service includes planning 
and recommendations for hardware and software.  Purchase of hardware and software shall be 
by separate agreement. 
7. ACNS, Inc. will manage and exercise all administrator activities including administrator 
passwords, creating user accounts, server administrator, working with software vendors for 
needed upgrades, etc.  Having a single entity responsible for the activities is paramount to 
maintaining a secure environment for all users as well as the integrity of the cities’ network. 
 
B. Network Operations 
1.  Maintain Routers and Switches and ensure firmware is updated. 
2.  Ensure that all Servers, Network Switches, Routers and Internet Links are properly optimized. 
3.  Periodic network check for CRC errors, duplex mismatch, utilization, etc. 
4.  Ensure that all firewalls are properly configured and functioning properly. Software-based 
firewalls shall be updated according to service contract with firewall vendor . 
 
C. Miscellaneous Activities 
1.  Develop Network Documentation for support purposes. 
2. Technical Phone Support for Issues through the ACNS helpdesk / ticketing system. 

a.  This would include issues deemed IT related / technical support that can be 
accessed directly or indirectly by the ACNS staff. 

3.  Develop relationships with software vendors to ensure proper access, data integrity and 
functionality. This would also include any support of subsystems needed to assist the vendors with 
providing their solutions to the customer. 
4.  Periodic security audits to ensure proper files access and usage by employees. 

http://www.andersonnetworks.com/


Confidential                 
 

 

 
24 Alicia Lane, Suite 5, Dahlonega, GA 30533 / Phone: (678) 222-1750 / www.andersonnetworks.com 

 

2  

5. Purchasing of any and all IT functions, hardware, software, etc., would need to be approved by 
ACNS or directly purchased by ACNS, excluding any governmental software packages required 
by the State for certain functions.  ACNS provides competitive pricing for hardware, software, etc. 
 
2.  Items NOT Included in Services: 
1. Onsite service.  For this specific agreement, all helpdesk / remote support functions will 
be supported by ACNS.  Anything that requires onsite service would be charged as outlined in 
section 2.  If onsite service needs to be included, it can be quoted and this agreement amended 
at any time. 
 
2. Charges.   
 Charges will be as follows to be billed monthly on or around the 1st of each month and 
will be on a NET30 terms policy: 

a. $ 97.00 per month per user.  This includes the remote support agent as 
well as cyber security protection and patch/security management.   

b. $150.00 per month per server.  This includes remote support as well as 
cyber security protection and any maintenance needed. 

c. $100.00 per month per site for network support.  This includes network 
devices such as switches, firewalls, and/or wireless access points. 

d. Onsite services would be billed at $175.00 per hour and would be pre-
approved by a designated person before work is performed.  This 
would include any onsite work not covered by projects or computer 
installations. 

e. Projects would be assigned a fixed fee and would be any one item of 
work 6 hours or more.  Projects are pre-approved, budgeted and events 
are planned. 

f. Computer onboarding (new computers) would be billed a fixed fee of 
$400.00.  This would include purchasing (if needed), setup, 
configuration and completing the end user move of data. 

g. Computers that are NOT assigned to a user will be billed at $36.00 per 
month per computer.  This will cover cyber security services for that 
computer since it is attached to the network at customer site. 

h. Currently Mimecast is being used for email security.  ACNS would 
either use this solution or propose to onboard the City to our security 
solution, which is Graphus.  Either way, this would be billed at $7 per 
month per mailbox to be protected. 

i. The client would be onboarded to our Security and Awareness 
Solution.  This is included in this agreement. 

j. Image Based backups of servers would be billed at $425.00 per month 
in the beginning.  If data storage or the number of servers were to grow, 
the solution and/or pricing would be reviewed to support the additions. 

k. For Office 365, ACNS would transition services over to our CSP plan: 
a. Office 365 Business Standard - $15.00 per month per user. 
b. Office 365 Business Basic - $7.20 per month per user. 
c. Office 365 Exchange Online Plan 1 - $4.80 per month per user. 
d. Office 365 Exchange Online Plan 2 - $9.60 per month per user. 
e. Any other plans needed for different uses would be quoted by 

ACNS and approved by the client. 
 
3.  Term of Service.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2025 and shall 
continue until September 30, 2026 and will be in full force or until terminated by either party upon 
at least (30) days prior written notice. Absent a termination notice, in no event (except breach) 
may this Agreement be terminated prior to September 30, 2026. Upon termination of this 
Agreement, the Consultants shall transfer and make available to the Customer all property and 
materials in Consultant's possession or subject to Consultant's control that are the rightful 
property of the Customer.  The Consultant shall make every reasonable effort to secure all written 

http://www.andersonnetworks.com/


Confidential                 
 

 

 
24 Alicia Lane, Suite 5, Dahlonega, GA 30533 / Phone: (678) 222-1750 / www.andersonnetworks.com 

 

3  

or descriptive matter which pertains to the Services or Work Product and agrees to provide 
reasonable cooperation to arrange for the transfer of all property, contracts, agreements, supplies 
and other third party interests, including those not then utilized, and all rights and claims thereto 
and therein. In the event of loss or destruction of any such material or descriptive matter, the 
Consultants shall immediately notify the Customer of the details of the loss or destruction in 
writing and provide the necessary information for a loss statement or other documentation to the 
Customer.  

 
4.  Ownership Rights.  The Consultant shall have ownership to all Consultants’ Materials. 
"Consultant's Material” consists of all copyrighted: 
 

(a) Materials that do not constitute Services or Work Product (as defined in Sect 1, 
Services, Specifications) 
 
(b) Materials that are solely owned by the Consultants or licensed to the Consultants. 
 
(c) Materials that are incorporated into the Work Product or a part of the Services. 
 
Additional material shall include, but are not limited to: 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Consultant shall hold all right, title, and interest in and to Consultant's Material. Customer 

shall not do anything that may infringe upon or in any way undermine Consultants’ right, title, and 
interest in the Consultant's Material, as described in this Section 4.  Notwithstanding the above, 
Consultant hereby grants Client an unrestricted, nonexclusive, perpetual, fully paid-up worldwide 
license for the use or for the sublicense of the use of Consultant's Material for the purpose of 
client’s website and IT systems. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
5.  Compensation.  For all of Consultants’ services under this Agreement, Customer shall 
compensate Consultants, in cash, pursuant to the terms of Section 2.  In the event Customer fails 
to make any of the payments referenced in Section 2 by the deadline set forth in Section 2, 
Consultants have the right, but are not obligated, to pursue any or all of the following remedies:  
(1) terminate the Agreement (breach), (2) immediately stop all services, (3) bring legal action.  
 
6.  Mutual Confidentiality.  Customer and Consultants acknowledge and agree that the 
Specifications and all other documents and information related to the performance, production, 
creation or any expression of the services or work product are the property of the Customer. 
Materials provided between Consultants and Customer (the “Confidential Information”) including, 
but not limited to, documentation, product specifications, drawings, pictures, photographs, charts, 
correspondence, supplier lists, financial reports, analyses and other furnished property shall be 
the exclusive property of the respected owner (the "Owning Party") and will constitute valuable 
trade secrets.  Both parties shall keep the Confidential Information in confidence and shall not, at 
any time during or after the term of this Agreement, without prior written consent from the owning 
party, disclose or otherwise make available to anyone, either directly or indirectly, all or any part 
of the Confidential Information.   

 
By virtue of this Agreement, the parties may have access to information that is confidential to one 
another (“Confidential Information”).  The Customer is a local government of the State of Georgia 
and is subject to the Open Records Act, O.C.G.A. § 50-18-70, et. seq. (“ORA”).  The Open 
Records Act requires disclosure of contracts, communications, data, and other records, in any 
format, including electronic formats, except as provided under the Act.  Confidential Information 

http://www.andersonnetworks.com/


Confidential                 
 

 

 
24 Alicia Lane, Suite 5, Dahlonega, GA 30533 / Phone: (678) 222-1750 / www.andersonnetworks.com 

 

4  

required to be kept private under any federal or state law, including income tax information, is 
exempted in most circumstances as are trade secrets.  Contract pricing information, general 
terms and conditions are not protected from disclosure.  Consultants may specify to Customer 
any trade secret or other private information it believes protected under the ORA at the time the 
information is submitted to Customer.  In all circumstances, Customer shall comply with the ORA 
for records related to Consultants which have been marked as Confidential.  Consultants may 
exercise its rights under the ORA to petition the Superior Court for protection from disclosure.  
Excluded from the “Confidential Information” definition is anything that can be seen by the public 
or had been previously made available by the owning party in a public venue. 

 
7.  Limited Warranty and Limitation on Damages. Consultants warrant the Services or Work 
Product(s) will conform to the Specifications.  If the Services or Work product do not conform to 
the Specifications, Consultants shall be responsible to correct the Services or Work Product 
without unreasonable delay, at Consultants' sole expense and without charge to Customer, to 
bring the Services or Work Product into conformance with the Specifications.  This warranty shall 
be the exclusive warranty available to the Customer.  Customer waives any other warranty, 
express or implied.  Customer acknowledges that Consultants are not responsible for the results 
obtained by the Customer when using any Services or Work Product produced by Consultants.  
Customer waives any claim for damages, direct or indirect, and agrees that its sole and exclusive 
remedy for damages (either in contract or tort) is the return of the consideration paid to 
Consultants as set forth in Section 2. No action, regardless of form, arising out of the Services 
rendered or Work Product, under the Agreement, may be brought by either party more than one 
year after the cause of action has occurred. In no event shall Consultants be held liable for 
consequential damages. 
 
8.  Independent Contractor.  Consultants are retained as independent contractors.  Consultants 
will be fully responsible for payment of their own income taxes on all compensation earned under 
this Agreement.  Customer will not withhold or pay any income tax, social security tax, or any 
other payroll taxes on Consultants’ behalf.  Consultants understand that they will not be entitled to 
any fringe benefits that Customer provides for its employees generally or to any statutory 
employment benefits, including without limitation worker’s compensation or unemployment 
insurance. 
 
9.  Insurance. The Consultants shall maintain general liability insurance throughout the entire 
term of this Agreement, in at least $1,000,000.00 coverage limits providing against liability for 
bodily injury, death and property damage that may arise out of or based upon any act or omission 
of the Consultants or any of its employees, agents or subcontractors under this Agreement. Upon 
written request, the Consultants shall provide certificates from its insurers indicating the amount 
of insurance coverage, the nature of such coverage and the expiration date of each applicable 
policy. Consultants shall name Customer as an additional insured, on any public liability policy.  
 
10.  Equipment.  Customer agrees to make available to Consultants, for Consultants’ use in 
performing the services required by this Agreement, such items of hardware and software as 
Customer and Consultants may agree are reasonably necessary for such purpose.  
 
Customer agrees to make the following equipment and/or services available to Consultants 
 
 (a) Any Unknown Passwords or Accounts (ISP, Recently Configured Equipment) 
 
 (b) Any Software CD’s installed on Supported Computers or Servers 
 
 (c) Support Numbers for Hardware, Software or Internet Connection Support (ISP) 
 
10.1  Expenses. Consultants will not be reimbursed for any expenses incurred in connection with 
the Services or Work Product, whether direct or indirect, without the express written approval of 
the Customer. 

http://www.andersonnetworks.com/


Confidential                 
 

 

 
24 Alicia Lane, Suite 5, Dahlonega, GA 30533 / Phone: (678) 222-1750 / www.andersonnetworks.com 

 

5  

 
11.  General Provisions 
 
11.1  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior agreements or 
understandings, written or oral, between the parties related to the subject matter hereof.  No 
modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by both of the 
parties hereto. 

 
11.2  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Georgia.  Exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in Dawson County, 
Georgia Superior Courts. 
 
11.3  Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Customer 
and Consultants and their respective successors and assigns, provided that Consultants may not 
assign any of his obligations under this Agreement without Customer’s prior written consent.  
 
11.4   Waiver.  The waiver by either party of any breach or failure to enforce any of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement at any time shall not in any way affect, limit, or waive such party’s 
right thereafter to enforce and compel strict compliance with every term and condition of this 
Agreement. 
 
11.5   Good Faith.  Each party represents and warrants to the other that such party has acted in 
good faith, and agrees to continue to so act, in the negotiation, execution, delivery, performance, 
and any termination of this Agreement. 
 
11.6   No Right to Assign.  Consultants have no right to assign, sell, modify or otherwise alter 
this agreement, except upon the express written advance approval of Customer, which consent 
can be withheld for any reason. Client may freely assign its rights and obligations under this 
agreement. 
 
11.7   Payments.  In the event Customer fails to make any of the payments set forth in Section 2 
within the time prescribed in Section 2, Consultants have the right to withhold Services, remove 
work product from Consultant owned resources, or seek legal remedy until payment in full is paid, 
plus accrued late charges of 1 ½% per month.  Late charges would be assessed at the 1st of 
the next month if an invoice is not paid in the month it is due. 
 
11.8   Indemnification.  Customer warrants that everything it gives Consultants in the execution 
or performance of services, or the creation of any and all Work Product is legally owned or 
licensed to Customer. To the extent allowed by Georgia Law, Customer agrees to indemnify and 
hold Consultants harmless from any and all claims brought by any third party relating to any 
aspect of the Services or Work Product, including, but without limitation, any and all demands, 
liabilities, losses, costs and claims including attorney’s fees arising out of injury caused by 
Customer’s products/services, material supplied by Customer or copyright infringement. 
 
11.9   Use of Descriptions of Services or Work Product for Promotional Purposes.  
Customer grants Consultants the right to use descriptive text, testimonials, performance metrics, 
and other images, photos and/or graphics that demonstrate the Services or Work Product for 
promotional purposes and/or to cross-link it with other promotional resources developed by 
Consultants. 
 
11.10   No Responsibility for Theft.  Consultants have no responsibility for any third party taking 
all or any part of the Services or Work Product, results of Services or Work Performed, or the 
improper use of any Services or Work Product produced by Consultants by any third party. 
 

http://www.andersonnetworks.com/


Confidential                 
 

 

 
24 Alicia Lane, Suite 5, Dahlonega, GA 30533 / Phone: (678) 222-1750 / www.andersonnetworks.com 

 

6  

11.11   Right to Make Derivative Works.  Consultants have the exclusive rights in making any 
derivative works of any Services, Methodology, or Work Product. 
 
11.12   Attorney’s Fees.  In the event any party to this Agreement employs an attorney to 
enforce any of the terms of the Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
actual attorney’s fees and costs, including expert witness fees. 
 
11.13   No responsibility for loss.  Consultants are not responsible for any down time, lost files, 
equipment failures, acts of nature, or any damage resultant from activities considered beyond the 
control of the consultants such as war, riots, natural disasters, vandalism and other events. 
 
 Each party represents and warrants that, on the date first written above, that they are 
authorized to enter into this agreement in entirety and duly bind their respective principals by their 
signature below: 
 
  

http://www.andersonnetworks.com/


Confidential                 
 

 

 
24 Alicia Lane, Suite 5, Dahlonega, GA 30533 / Phone: (678) 222-1750 / www.andersonnetworks.com 

 

7  

 
 
 
EXECUTED as of the date first written above 

CUSTOMER 
Approved as to form:          
      City of Dawsonville 
By: ____________________________ 
      City Attorney 
      By:  ________________________________ 
 
      Title: _______________________________ 
       
      Date signed: _________________________ 
 
      Attest: 
 
      By: ________________________________ 
            City Clerk 
 
      CONSULTANTS     
 
      By:  ________________________________ 
 
      Title:  ______________________________ 
            
      Date signed: _________________________  

http://www.andersonnetworks.com/


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    CONSIDERATION FOR DOOR INSTALLATION BETWEEN GRANDADDY 

MIMMS, DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM AND STATION HOUSE  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL  
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

CINDY ELLIOTT HAS GIVEN VERBAL APPROVAL. CINDY WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR QUESTIONS.  
 
MARLO WITH STATION HOUSE HAS GIVEN VERBAL APPROVAL.  
 
MEGAN WITH GRANDADDY MIMMS NEEDS TO GET APPROVAL FROM 4 OTHER PEOPLE, INCLUDING 
THEIR LAWYER BEFORE THEIR APPROVAL IS GIVEN.  
 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   15     
 

 

 









                                           
 

 

      
     SUBJECT:                         2026 MEETING CALENDAR                  _ 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
TO REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE DRAFT OF THE 2026 CITY MEETINGS CALENDAR 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      
CERTAIN DATES NEED TO BE CLARIFIED AS OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED MEMO     
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
APPROVE IF DATES ARE CLARIFIED OR APPROVE FINAL MEETING CALENDAR AT THE 
OCTOBER 20, 2025 CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
     
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
        
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Beverly Banister, City Clerk_______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   16   
 

 

 



                                    
 

Meeting times: 
 
City Council     5:00 pm 
Planning Commission   5:30 pm 
Historic Preservation Commission 5:30 pm 
Downtown Development Authority 5:30 pm 
 
 

Dates of special note:  
 
January Meeting – Which day would Council prefer to hold a meeting in January?   
 

We have historically held only one meeting in January in prior years and typically on a 
Thursday due to City Hall closures for the New Year and the MLK holiday.  
 
Monday, February 16, 2026 – Does the Council want to schedule a meeting on 
Monday, February 16, 2026? 
 

This is President’s Day.  The City is open but the schools are closed.   
 
April 2026 – One meeting scheduled in April due to DC Schools Spring break.  
 
Monday, July 6, 2026 – Does the Council want to schedule a meeting on July 6, 2026 
following the 4th of July weekend?  
 

Historically, the City has not held a meeting around the 4th of July weekend.  
 
September 2026 – One meeting scheduled in September due to Labor Day holiday. 
 
October 2026 – One meeting scheduled due to DC Schools Fall Break occurring on 
Monday, October 5, 2026.  Note: This is typically their fall break schedule but their 
calendar is not online yet. 
 
December 2026 – Does the Council want to schedule a meeting on Monday, December 
21, 2026 which is the week of Christmas?  
 
 

DDA – Meetings scheduled during May and November have been moved from a Monday 
to a Thursday to accommodate for holidays. 
 
HPC – Meeting in December changed from a Monday to a Thursday to accommodate for 
holidays.  

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
415 Hwy 53 E • Suite 100 
Dawsonville, GA 30534 

beverly.banister@dawsonville-ga.gov 
(706) 265-3256 

mailto:beverly.banister@dawsonville-ga.gov


January 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

   December 31, 2025 1 2 3 

   City Hall Closed City Hall Closed   

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

 Hold City Council 
Meeting? 
 

  Hold City Council 
Meeting? 

  

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

  Hold City Council 
Meeting? 

  

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

 City Hall Closed 
MLK Day 

     

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

 DDA  
5:30 pm 

     

       

       

 

February 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

15 President’s Day 16 17 18 19 20 21 

 DC Schools Closed 

Hold City Council  
Meeting? 

DC Schools Closed     

22        23 24 25 26 27 28 

 HPC 
5:30 pm 

     

       

       

       

       

 



March 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

 DDA 
5:30 pm 

     

29 30 31     

       

       

       

 

April 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

   1 2 3 4 

     City Hall Closed 
Good Friday 

 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

Easter Sunday DC Schools Closed DC Schools Closed DC Schools Closed DC Schools Closed DC Schools Closed  

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

26 27 28 29 30   

 HPC 
5:30 pm 

     

       

       

 



May 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     1 2 

       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

  DDA  
5:30 pm 

  

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

 City Hall Closed 
Memorial Day 

     

31       

       

 

June 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

 City Council  
5:00 pm 

     

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

 Planning  
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

 HPC 
5:30 pm 

     

28 29 30     

       

       

       

 



July 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

   1 2 3 4 

     City Hall Closed 
In observance of 
July 4th Holiday 

 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

 Hold City Council 
Meeting? 

     

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

26 27 28 29 30 31  

 DDA 
5:30 pm 

     

       

       

 

August 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 

       

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

 HPC  
5:30 pm 

     

30 31      

       

 



September 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 

       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

 City Hall Closed 
Labor Day 

     

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

     

27 28 29 30    

 DDA  
5:30 pm 

     

       

       

 

October 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

    1 2 3 

       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

 DC Schools Closed? 
Hold City Council 
Meeting? 

DC Schools Closed? DC Schools Closed?    

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

 Planning 
Commission  
5:30 pm 

     

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

   City Hall Closed 
Moonshine Festival 

 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

 HPC  
5:30 pm 

     

       

       

 



November 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 

  DDA  
5:30  

  

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

 City Hall Closed 
Veteran’s Day 

   

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

 City Council 
5:30 pm 

     

22 23 24 23 26 27 28 

    City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 

City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 

 

29 30      

       

       

       

 

December 2026 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 

    HPC 
5:30 pm 

  

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

 City Council 
5:00 pm 
 

     

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

 Planning 
Commission 
5:30 pm 

     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

 Hold City Council 
Meeting? 

  City Hall Closed 
Christmas Eve 

City Hall Closed 
Christmas Day 

 

27 28 29 30 31   

    City Hall Closed 
New Year’s Eve 

  

       

       

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE CITY UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:   
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Jacob Evans, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    17      
 

 

 



Ad Edge Filter System: A second quote has been requested. Base drawings were submitted to the engineer this week. According to 
Environmental Owner Mike Sams, “This is taking a moment but bear with us as we are working on getting something as quickly as 
possible, just crossing all dots.     
 
New Shelter & Restroom: Completed and open. Plus, it is now available for reservations. A new 8ft concrete walkway was poured this 
week going directly to that pavilion. Picnic tables made and placed in pavilions. Dirt was hauled off from that area as well.  
 
Trail from Dog Park to Stonewall Subdivision: Staff met with Jackie Townley this week. Townley will be preparing two quotes: 1) A 
mulch trail – does not need to be ADA accessible. 2) A concrete sidewalk – does need to be ADA accessible. This will be a much more 
expensive option.   
 
City Dog Park: We have had several instances where various users of the dog park were leaving the water on at the spigot, thus 
flooding certain areas. To help alleviate that issue, staff put pea gravel out in certain areas of each dog pin. Staff is also currently 
looking at different water fountains to install.  
 
McDonald’s: Construction still underway. We are being told they will now be completed in less than two weeks.  
 
WWTP Bid Documents: These documents have been signed which brings us one step closer to construction starting.  
 
GMA Visionary City: Staff has started this process.  
 
Concerts at Mainstreet Park: Our second concert is scheduled for September 27th. Alex Young and Friends will be the main event.  
 
Special Events, 2025 Food Truck Night & Christmas Event Dates: The next Food Truck Friday is October 10th.  Our Christmas Tree 
Lighting, Parade, Jingle Market, Santa, entertainment, and food trucks will be on November 22nd. Lastly our Amicalola Regional 
Farmer’s Market is continuing each Saturday. 
 
Master Plan: The City has not officially adopted its Master Plan. Staff would like to bring this to your attention so we can begin the 
adoption process. If updates to the plan are needed, we can address those as part of the process. Our goal is to move forward with 
formally adopting the Master Plan. 
 
Work Toward Long-Range Plan Adoption: Staff and elected officials seek to work together to adopt the Downtown Dawsonville 
Comprehensive Strategic Plan, including within this document the future town center Master Plan and Implementation Plan or adapt 
the plans and amend accordingly to meet leadership approval for adoption. 
 
Redevelopment Powers: (OCGA 36-44) Staff is recommending to start discussing with Kevin the process to obtain Redevelopment 
Powers for the City, by developing an Urban Redevelopment Plan establishing a Redevelopment Agency (which can include Council), 
for the purpose of initiating targeted redevelopment and revitalization of blighted areas.  This requires approval from our local GA 
delegation.  Redevelopment powers are necessary if the City later choses to explore a TAD (Tax Allocation District) as one of our 
funding tools, for which a referendum vote would be required. 
 
Cannery with Retail Storefront & Educational Spaces (Agribusiness & Agritourism Economic Development Project): – GA 
Tech Feasibility study is ending. A stakeholder meeting to discuss this project with potential collaborators is in the works. 
 
RFP for Information Technology Services: Staff has decided. A recommendation will be made on September 22nd Meeting.  
 
 
Leak Adjustments - We had one leak adjustment for the month 

- Water: $32.60 
- Sewer: $49.19 
- Total: $81.79 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE DIRECTOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/22/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS REFLECTING FUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY THROUGH AUGUST 31, 
2025 ARE ATTACHED 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
     
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Director   

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  18   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2025 -August 31, 2025

17%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 2,719,400$       399,579$          14.69%
      Licenses and permits 91,500              36,476              39.86%
      Intergovernmental revenues 56,300              -                   0.00%
      Fees 339,035            62,543              18.45%
      Other 270,151            58,496              21.65%

               Total revenues 3,476,386         557,094            16.03%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 167,620            27,620              16.48%
      Mayor 63,700              11,134              17.48%
      Elections 20,000              -                   0.00%
      Administration 1,127,000         174,204            15.46%
      City Hall building 246,500            37,547              15.23%
      Animal control 2,000                100                   5.00%
      Roads 899,500            115,288            12.82%
      Parks 134,000            7,533                5.62%
      Planning and zoning 574,922            57,110              9.93%
      Economic development 241,144            32,422              13.45%

 
               Total expenditures 3,476,386         462,958            13.32%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 94,136              

      Transfer in From Reserves (94,136)            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 0                       



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2025 - August 31, 2025

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 1,000,000$     181,252$        18.13%
       Sewer fees 1,400,000       259,505          18.54%
       Garbage fees 250,000          61,160            24.46%
       Miscellaneous 198,328          11,155            5.62%

               
               Total revenues 2,848,328       513,072          18.01%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 633,000          111,254          17.58%
        Garbage service 325,200          47,568            14.63%
        Group insurance 236,000          29,721            12.59%
        Insurance 600                 -                  0.00%
        Interest 77,000            9,637              12.52%
        Payroll taxes 32,700            5,369              16.42%
        Professional 206,000          17,380            8.44%
        Miscellaneous 217,200          14,671            6.75%
        Repairs/supplies 305,000          37,537            12.31%
        Retirement 33,000            6,777              20.54%
        Salaries 422,628          69,337            16.41%
       Overtime 2,471              
        Technical services 142,000          17,016            11.98%
        Utilities 218,000          20,008            9.18%

               Total expenditures 2,848,328       388,746          13.65%

INCOME (LOSS) 124,326          



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VI

July 1, 2025 - August 31, 2025

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 972                   111                   11.42%
       Other 8,028                -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 9,000                111                   1.23%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                1,500                16.67%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 9,000                1,500                16.67%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,389)              

      Transfer in From Reserves 1,389                
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VII

July 1, 2025 - August 31, 2025

SPLOST VII
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,300,000         288,012            22.15%
       Interest 84,000              16,836              20.04%
       Other 1,200,000         -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 2,584,000         304,848            11.80%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition 200,000            -                   0.00%
       Roads and sidewalks 2,384,000         -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Land Acq. / Downtown -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects/Sewer Projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 2,584,000         -                   0.00%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 304,848            

      Transfer in From Reserves (304,848)          
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
TSPLOST 

July 1, 2025 - August 31, 2025

TSPLOST 
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 685,000            111,055            16.21%
       Interest 2,500                1,901                76.04%
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 687,500            112,956            16.43%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
-                   -                   #DIV/0!

       Roads 687,500            308,042            44.81%
-                   -                   0.00%
-                   -                   0.00%
-                   -                   0.00%
-                   -                   0.00%
-                   -                   0.00%
-                   -                   #DIV/0!
-                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 687,500            308,042            44.81%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (195,086)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 195,086            
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                       


	1. 09.22.2025 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 09.08.2025 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting.DRAFT
	7b. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items TRAINING FOR CM
	7b. 2. Caleb Phillips_FW_ Event Reminder
	7b. 3. Will Illg_FW_ Event Reminder
	8. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items GSP DONATION
	9. 1. Executive Summary For BOARD APPOINTMENT
	10. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	11. 1. 09.22.2025 ES AGENDA _ZA-C2500171_PR LAND INVESTMENT
	11. 2. 20250917140928617_Redacted
	12. 1. 09.22.2025 ES AGENDA _ZA-C2500169_SPICER GROUP INC. ON BEHALF OF DEDE ALLEN HABITAT FOR HUMANITY-NCG_
	12. 2. 20250917141043275_Redacted
	13. 1. 09.22.2025 ES AGENDA _VAR-C2500170_SPICER GROUP INC. ON BEHALF OF DEDE ALLEN HABITAT FOR HUMANITY-NCG_
	13. 2. 20250917141104613_Redacted
	14. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items MANAGED IT RFP AWARD
	14. 2. ACNS - Dawsonville Contract - 2025-2026 r3 (002)
	15. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items DHM REQUEST
	15. 2. door drawings
	16. 1 Executive Summary For  2025 MEETINGS CALENDAR
	16. 2. 2026 Meeting Calendar Notes
	16. 3. 2026 Calendar
	17. 1.  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	17. 2. 25.09-22 CM Update and Leak Adjustments
	18. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE DIRECTOR
	18. 2. Financial Statements-AUG25
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST
	SPLOST VII
	TSPLOST

	Add VAR-C2500170 STAFF REPORT.pdf
	Direction from the Site
	Existing Land Use
	Existing Zoning
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN




